v.

ESTINE DAVIS,

DCA CASE NO. 82-1392

Respondent.

JOHN H. KATHE, M.D.,

Petitioner,

CASE NO. 64,664

v.

ESTINE DAVIS,

DCA CASE NO. 82-1392

Respondent.

JURISDICTIONAL BRIEF OF PETITIONER JOHN H. KATHE, M.D.

> STEPHENS, LYNN, CHERNAY & KLEIN ONE BISCAYNE TOWER SUITE 2400 Miami, Florida 33131 (305) 358-2000

BY:

ROBERT M. KLEIN DEBRA J. SNOW

Introductionl
Statement of the Case and Statement of Facts2
Summary of Argument4
Points on Appeal5
Argument6

THIS COURT SHOULD EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION IN THIS MATTER WHERE THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY RULED UPON THE VALIDITY OF SECTION 768.56, FLORIDA STATUTES, BUT IMPROPERLY APPLIED THAT STATUTE TO A CAUSE OF ACTION WHICH ACCRUED PRIOR TO JULY 1, 1980, AND WHERE THE THE THE D DISTRICT'S DECISION AFFIRMING THE CONSTITUTIONAL VALIDITY OF SECTION 768.56 WAS IN PART BASED UPON THE THIRD DISTRICT'S PRIOR DECISION IN YOUNG V. ALTENHAUS, 448 So2d 1039 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983), A DECISION WHICH WAS RECENTLY QUASHED BY THIS COURT.

Conclusion-----9 Certificate of Service-----10

Appendix

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

CASES

- DAVIS v. NORTH SHORE HOSPITAL 452 So2d 937 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983)-----2,3,4,6,8,9 FLORIDA MEDICAL CENTER INC v. VON STENTINA 436 So2d 1022 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983)-----2,7 FLORIDA PATIENT COMPENSATION FUND v. ROWE 10 FLW 249 (opinion decided May 2, 1985)-----2,9 JOLLIE v. STATE 405 So2d 418 (Fla. 1981)-----8
- YOUNG v. ALTENHAUS 448 So2d 1039 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983) 10 FLW 252 (opinion decided May 2, 1982)----3,4,5,6,7,8,10

STATUTES

Florida Statute, Section 768.56-----2,3,4,6,7,8

Rules

Rule	9.030	(a)(2)(A)(ii)	Fla.	R.App.P2,4,6,7
Rule	9.030	(a)(2)(A)(iv)	Fla.	R.APP.P6,7

OTHER CITATIONS

Art. 5, Section 3(b)(3) Florida Constitution-----5,6

INTRODUCTION

Petitioner John H. Kathe, M.D. was a Defendant in the trial court and Appellee before the District Court of Appeal of Florida, Third District. Respondent Estine Davis was the Plaintiff in the trial court action, and Appellant before the District Court of Appeal. In this brief, the parties will be referred to as Petitioner/Defendant and Respondent/Plaintiff, as well as by name.

The following symbols will be used for reference purposes:

"A" for references to the Appendix which

is attached to Petitioner's brief.

All emphasis has been supplied by counsel, unless indicated to the contrary.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND STATEMENT OF FACT

Petitioner seeks review of the decision of the Third District Court of Appeal in DAVIS v. NORTH SHORE HOSPITAL, 452 So2d 937 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983). The issue raised below is whether section 768.56, Fla. Statute (1981), which provides for an award of reasonable attorney's fees to the prevailing party in a medical malpractice action is constitutional. The decision of the Third District Court of Appeal in DAVIS reversed the ruling of the trial court, and found that Section 768.56, Florida Statutes, is constitutional.

Dr. Kathe initially sought review of the decision of the Third District Court of Appeal pursuant to Florida Rule of Appellate Procedure 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii). As this Court had agreed to review a decision from the Fourth District Court of Appeal, FLORIDA MEDICAL CENTER, etc., et al. v. VON STETINA, 436 So2d 1022 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983), which had also determined that Section 768.56 is constitutional, Petitioner sought to have this appeal consolidated with the VON STETINA appeal or, in the alternative, to stay the jurisdictional briefing schedule in this case pending a decision in VON STETINA. This Court stayed the subject case pending disposition of VON STETINA.

On May 8, 1985, Respondent moved to vacate the stay of proceedings entered by this Court and for summary denial of the review sought in this appeal. The basis for Respondent's motion was the decision of this Court in FLORIDA PATIENT'S COMPENSATION FUND v. ROWE, Supreme Court of Florida case number 64,459, opinion

-2-

decided May 2, 1985, (10 FLW 249), which Respondent maintained approved the decision of the Third District in DAVIS v. NORTH SHORE HOSPITAL, 452 So2d 937 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983).

Dr. Kathe replied to Respondent's Motion by agreeing that the stay should be vacated; nevertheless, Petitioner asked this Court not to summarily deny review. Petitioner maintained that review would be appropriate in this case because of this Court's decisions in YOUNG v. ALTENHAUS, Supreme Court of Florida case number 64,504 and 64,589 opinion decided May 2, 1982, (10 FLW 252), and the companion consolidated case of MATHEWS v. POHLMAN.

In his response, Dr. Kathe pointed out that the YOUNG decision held that although Section 768.56, Florida Statutes, is not unconstitutional, it cannot be constitutionally applied to causes of action accruing prior to July 1, 1980. In this instance, Petitioner maintains that Respondent's cause of action accrued prior to July 1, 1980. Thus, in light of this Court's decision in YOUNG and MATHEWS, Section 768.56 cannot be constitutionally applied in this cause. Petitioner therefore suggested that this Court either enter an order directing the parties to complete jurisdictional briefs or briefs on the merits, or remand this cause to the trial court for a determination as to the date of accrual of Respondent's cause of action.

On May 31, 1985, this Court entered an order granting Respondent's motion to vacate the stay and denying Respondent's motion for summary denial of review. In compliance with the Court's order, Petitioner is filing his brief on jurisdiction.

-3-

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Dr. Kathe respectfully requests this Court to exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review the decision of the Third District Court of Appeal in DAVIS v. NORTH SHORE HOSPITAL, 452 So2d 937, (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983). This Court jurisdiction Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii) has pursuant to Fla.R.App.P. and Art. 5, Section 3(b)(3) Fla. Const., as the DAVIS decision expressly declared valid a state statute, Section 768.56, Florida Statutes. Conflict jurisdiction also exists as the DAVIS Decision conflicts with this Court's decision in YOUNG v. ALTENHAUS, Supreme Court of Florida, case number 64,459 10 FLW 252 (opinion decided May 2, 1985) and its companion consolidated case of MATHEWS V. POHLMAN.

Review is necessary in this case as Respondent's cause of action accrued prior to the effective date of Section 768.56, Florida Statutes. This Court's recent YOUNG decision held that Sectin 768.56 cannot be constitutionally applied to causes of action accruing prior to the effective date of that statute, July 1, 1980. If the decision of the Third District Court of Appeal in DAVIS is allowed to stand without review. Sectin 768.56 will be applied unconstitutionally to this case.

-4-

POINT ON APPEAL

WHETHER THIS COURT SHOULD EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION IN THIS MATTER WHERE THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY RULED UPON THE VALIDITY OF SECTION 768.56, FLORIDA STATUTES, BUT IMPROPERLY APPLIED THAT STATUTE TO A CAUSE OF ACTION WHICH ACCRUED PRIOR TO JULY 1, 1980, AND WHERE THE THIRD DISTRICT'S DECISION AFFIRMING THE CONSTITUTIONAL VALIDITY OF SECTION 768.56 WAS IN PART BASED UPON THE THIRD DISTRICT'S PRIOR DECISION IN YOUNG V. ALTENHAUS, 448 So2d 1039 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983), A DECISION WHICH WAS RECENTLY QUASHED BY THIS COURT.

ARGUMEMT

THIS COURT SHOULD EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION IN THIS MATTER WHERE THE THIRD DISTRICT COURT OF APPEAL EXPRESSLY RULED UPON THE VALIDITY OF SECTION 768.56, FLORIDA STATUTES, BUT IMPROPERLY APPLIED THAT STATUTE то Α CAUSE \mathbf{OF} ACTION WHICH ACCRUED PRIOR TO JULY 1. 1980, AND WHERE THIRD THE DISTRICT'S DECISION AFFIRMING THE CONSTITUTIONAL VALIDITY OF SECTION 768.56 WAS IN PART BASED UPON THE THIRD DISTRICT'S PRIOR DECISION IN YOUNG V. ALTENHAUS, So2d 1039 3rd DCA 1983), A 448 (Fla. DECISION WHICH WAS RECENTLY QUASHED BY THIS COURT.

Petitioner respectfully requests that this Court exercise its discretionary jurisdiction and grant certiorari to review the decision of the Third District Court of Appeal in DAVIS v. NORTH SHORE HOSPITAL, 452 So2d 937 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983). Notice to invoke discretionary jurisdiction was initially filed solely on the authority of Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii), Fla. R.App.P., and Art. 5, Section 3(b)(3) Fla. Const., as the DAVIS decision expressly declared valid a state statute, Section 768.56, Florida Statutes.

An additional basis for exercise of this Court's discretionary jurisdiction has now arisen. This Court's decisions in YOUNG v. ALTENHAUS, Supreme Court of Florida case numbers 64,504 and 64, 589, opinion decided May 2, 1982, (10 FLW 252), and its companion consolidated case, MATHEWS v. POLHMAN, have created a conflict with the decision of the Third District Court of Appeal in this matter. For this reason, this Court may now exercise

-6-

its jurisdiction to review the DAVIS decision pursuant to the added authority of Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), Fla. R.App.P. and Art. 5, Section 3(b)(3), Fla. Const.

This Court has jurisdiction pursuant to Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii), Fla. R. App. P., as the Third District Court of Appeal in DAVIS specifically ruled upon the constitutional validity of Section 768.56, Florida Statutes, which provides for an award of reasonable attorney's fees to the prevailing party in a medical malpractice action. Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(ii), Fla. R. App. P., authorizes this Court to review decisions of district courts of appeal which expressly declare valid a state statute.

This Court may also exercise its jurisdiction to review DAVIS decision pursuant to the authority of the Rule 9.030(a)(2)(A)(iv), Fla. R. App. P., which authorizes the Court to review decisions of the district courts of appeal which expressly and directly conflict with the decision of another district court of appeal or this Court on the same question of law. In this instance, the Third District Court of Appeal ruled that Section 768.56 "meets constitutional muster," citing as authority FLORIDA MEDICAL CENTER INC. v. VON STETINA, 436 So2d 1022 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983) and YOUNG v. ALTENHAUS, 448 So2d 1039 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983). A conflict has now arisen because of this Court's recent decision in YOUNG and MATHEWS. Although this Court upheld the constitutionality of Section 768.56 in YOUNG, it ruled that the statute cannot be constitutionally applied to causes of actions which accrued prior to July 1, 1980.

This Court need look no further than its opinion in YOUNG

-7-

and MATHEWS and the opinion of the Third District Court of Appeal in DAVIS to see that a conflict exists. The Third District Court of Appeal in DAVIS made a blanket ruling that Section 768.56 is constitutional, without limiting its ruling to cases where the statute is applied to causes of action accruing after July 1, 1980. Thus, the DAVIS case essentially holds that the statute is constitutional as to <u>all</u> causes of action, regardless of date of accrual. In contrast, this Court's decision in YOUNG and MATHEWS limited application of the statute to those causes of action accruing subsequent to July 1, 1980; it cannot be "constitutionally applied" to those causes of action accruing prior to July 1, 1980. YOUNG, supra. Conflict thus exists.

Further grounds for exercise of conflict jurisdiction exist as the relevant portion of one of the authorities which was relied upon by the Third District Court of Appeal in DAVIS, YOUNG v. ALTENHAUS, has been quashed by this Court. Where a decision of a district court of appeal cites as controlling authority another district court decision that this Court has reversed or quashed, prima facie grounds exist for an exercise of conflict jurisdiction. See JOLLIE v. STATE, 405 So2d 418 (Fla. 1981).

This Court should exercise its discretionary jurisdiction to review the DAVIS decision. The record clearly reflects that Respondent's cause of action accrued prior to July 1, 1980. Respondent's lawsuit was based upon her contention that a surgical sponge had been left in her body during surgery. It was alleged that the sponge was left in during an operation which was performed on January 2, 1980, and that a second procedure was required

-8-

on January 3, 1980 to remove the sponge. (Appendix A6). Thus, Section 768.56, Florida Statute cannot be constitutionally applied in this instance. Petitioner would therefore suggest that this Court should exercise its jurisdiction in this matter, and require the parties to submit briefs on the merits.

If this Court feels that the record is insufficient to clearly reflect the date of accrual of Respondent's cause of action. it may remand the case for a determination as to the date of accrual of the cause of action, pursuant to the authority of this Court's decision in FLORIDA PATIENT COMPENSATION FUND v. ROWE, Supreme Court of Florida case number 64,459, opinion decided May 2, 1985. Thus, if these is any remaining question on that point, this should not prevent the Court from exercising jurisdiction over this cause. While Dr. Kathe does not believe that there can be any question concerning the date of accrual of Respondent's cause of action, the option to remand is available. This Court should exercise jurisdiction over these consolidated cases.

CONCLUSION

For all of the above-captioned reasons, Petitioner John H. Kathe, M.D., would respectfully suggest that this Court should exercise jurisdiction in this cause. Accordingly, the Court should enter an order requiring the parties to submit briefs on the merits.