### IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

Sir	) J.	WHIT	E

JUL & 1985

CLERK, SUPREME COUP

By\_\_\_\_Chief Deputs CI

LEONARD CANTOR,

Petitioner,

vs.

CASE NO. 64,663

ESTINE DAVIS,

Respondent.

JOHN H. KATHE, M.D.,

Petitioner,

vs.

CASE NO. 64,664

ESTINE DAVIS,

Respondent.

#### RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON JURISDICTION

FREIDIN & HIRSH, P.A.
Suite 2500, 44 W. Flagler Street
Miami, Fla. 33130
-andPODHURST, ORSECK, PARKS, JOSEFSBERG,
EATON, MEADOW & OLIN, P.A.
1201 City National Bank Building
25 West Flagler Street
Miami, Florida 33130
(305) 358-2800

Attorneys for Respondent

BY: JOEL D. EATON

#

#### i. ISSUE PRESENTED ON JURISDICTION

WHETHER THIS COURT SHOULD EXERCISE ITS DISCRETIONARY JURISDICTION TO REVIEW DAVIS V. NORTH SHORE HOSPITAL, 452 So.2d 937 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983), WHERE THE ISSUE SOUGHT TO BE RAISED HERE WAS NOT RAISED IN THE TRIAL COURT, NOT RAISED IN THE DISTRICT COURT, AND NOT DISCUSSED IN THE DECISION SOUGHT TO BE REVIEWED.

#### II. ARGUMENT

The petitioners are two physicians who were unsuccessful defendants in a medical malpractice action below, in which the plaintiff obtained a small judgment of \$10,000.00. Following trial, the plaintiff sought an award of attorney's fees under \$768.56, Fla. Stat. (1981). The defendants challenged the constitutionality of \$768.56 on several grounds. Copies of their motions to strike the plaintiff's claim for attorney's fees are included in the appendix to this brief. 1/ Both motions conceded that "Florida Statute Section 768.56 entitled "Attorney's Fees in Medical Malpractice Actions" is applicable to this claim", and neither motion raised any challenge to the constitutionality of the statute as applied retroactively to causes of action accruing before July 1, 1980. The trial court declared the statute "unconstitutional because it is vague and because it denies to defendants equal protection of the laws as guaranteed by the Florida Constitution and the Constitution of the United States". Davis v. North Shore Hospital, 425 So.2d 937, 937 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1983). On appeal, the Third District rejected the two constitutional challenges raised by the defendants, held the statute to be constitutional to the extent that it had been challenged, and reversed the trial court's order. Id.

½ We would not ordinarily resort to the "record proper" in this fashion. However, the defendants' entire argument here is built upon the "record proper", rather than on the face of the decision sought to be reviewed—so we have no choice but to respond in kind so that this Court is not misled.

Subsequently, in Florida Patient's Compensation Fund v. Rowe, 10 FLW 249 (Fla. May 2, 1985), this Court also rejected the constitutional challenges asserted by the defendants below, declared the statute constitutional, and cited the Third District's decision in this case with approval. On the same date, this Court held that, notwith-standing its general constitutionality, the statute could not be constitutionally applied retroactively to cases in which the plaintiff's cause of action accrued before July 1, 1980. Young v. Altenhaus, 10 FLW 252 (Fla. May 2, 1982). Notwithstanding that the defendants never challenged the statute below on the ground that it could not be constitutionally applied retroactively, and notwithstanding that the District Court never ruled on that issue, the defendants now seek the benefit of Young v. Altenhaus—and the assistance of this Court in resurrecting the constitutional challenge they clearly waived below. They invoke both the discretionary "conflict" jurisdiction of this Court, and the discretionary jurisdiction of this Court to review decisions declaring a state statute valid.

The first basis upon which this Court's discretionary review jurisdiction is invoked clearly does not exist. Before this Court's "conflict" jurisdiction can be successfully invoked, it is apodictic that the decision sought to be reviewed must be in "express and direct conflict" with a decision of this Court or another District Court of Appeal--i.e., the decision must conflict on its face with such a decision. No such conflict appears on the face of the decision sought to be reviewed, because the date the plaintiff's cause of action accrued is not revealed on the face of the decision, and the face of the decision is expressly limited to a rejection of the defendants' "vagueness" and "equal protection" challenges. That is already clear to the Court, of course, else it would not have cited the decision with approval in Rowe.2/

 $<sup>\</sup>frac{2}{}$  Surely, the mere fact that the decision sought to be reviewed cites the Third District's decision in Young  $\nu$ . Altenhaus, subsequently quashed by this Court, cannot ipso

Neither do we believe that this Court should exercise whatever discretionary jurisdiction it might have under the second branch of its jurisdiction invoked by the defendants. There is certainly no need to determine the constitutionality of \$768.56, or to resolve any conflicting decisions of the district courts, because that has already been done in Rowe and Young. Neither is there any reason to correct the decision sought to be reviewed in this case, because it is harmonious on its face with both Rowe and Young. In fact, it is difficult to understand how the District Court's decision could be quashed by this Court, because it is perfectly correct on its face. Therefore, the only purpose which would be served by accepting jurisdiction of this case would be to relieve two individual litigants of their initial waiver of the constitutional challenge successfully asserted by two other litigants in other cases. We think this Court's limited resources should be devoted to more important things.

We also believe that it would be legally erroneous for this Court to accept the defendants' challenge to the constitutionality of \$768.56 on the ground now raised for the first time here. It has long been settled by this Court that constitutional attacks upon attorney's fee statutes cannot be raised for the first time on appeal. Sanford v. Rubin, 237 So.2d 134 (Fla. 1970). That proposition would seem to apply in spades when a litigant seeks to raise a constitutional challenge for the first time in this Court, which, if successful, would result in the reversal of a district court for a ruling it never made. And nothing in this Court's decision in Young (on its face at least) purports to overrule that settled proposition of Sanford v. Rubin.

facto give rise to express and direct conflict with this Court's subsequent decision in Young v. Altenhaus. Where, as here, the point for which a subsequently reviewed decision is cited is not disapproved by this Court, and this Court's subsequent quashal of the cited decision is on a ground not implicated by the decision sought to be reviewed, no "express and direct conflict" is created by the quashal of the cited decision on an unrelated ground.

It is also apparent that this Court did not intend to overrule Sanford in Young, because the principle of Sanford was repeated and reendorsed by this Court a month after Young was decided in Tillman v. State, 10 FLW 305, 305-06 (Fla. June 6, 1985):

The foregoing argument is not the argument raised at trial or on appeal. In both the trial and appellate courts, petitioner argued that no judgment of conviction could be entered on the jury's verdict of attempted manslaughter because there was no such crime. In order to be preserved for further review by a higher court, an issue must be presented to the lower court and the specific legal argument or ground to be argued on appeal or review must be part of that presentation if it is to be consid-[Citations omitted]. It is true that the trial ered preserved. and appeal took place before our decision in Taylor was rendered. Thus it might well be argued that there was no opportunity for defense counsel to rely on the specific ground raised now . . . . But the Taylor decision was no fundamental departure in this area of the law; it was based upon reasoning derived from legal precedents. . . . We therefore find that the issue petitioner presents is not properly presented, not having been raised at trial by specific objection or motion.

(Emphasis supplied).

With respect to the issue presented in the instant case, this Court's decision in Young was clearly not a "fundamental departure in this area of the law". Its reasoning derived from a long line of judicial precedent concerning the constitutionality of retroactively applicable statutes. The decision certainly came as no surprise to anyone, since several of the district courts had reached conflicting conclusions on the question long before this Court resolved the conflict in Young. In short, if Sanford and Tillman are still the law here, this Court cannot legally relieve the defendants of their initial failure to raise the constitutional challenge now raised here for the first time, and there is therefore neither reason nor need for granting review of the perfectly proper decision rendered by the District Court below.

## III. CONCLUSION

For all of the foregoing reasons, we respectfully submit that review should be denied.